1979

Nina Doreen Davis Boyce v. Milan Mack Boyce : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action for an equitable property distribution, alimony, and child support payments following dissolution of the marriage of plaintiff-appellant and defendant-respondent.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The Third Judicial District Court, the Honorable David B. Dee, presiding, denied appellant's motions to set aside the decree of divorce, for relief from the final decree and to modify the decree of divorce.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Plaintiff-appellant seeks a reversal of the Amended Judgment and Order of January 31, 1979 denying appellant's

Motion to Set Aside the Decree, Motion for Relief from Final Decree and Motion to Modify Divorce Decree and ordering appellant to remove the lis pendens previously filed by her in connection with this action.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Because of the complexity of the facts in this case, appellant will set out her Statement of Facts in two parts. First is a procedural overview necessitated by the volume of the file herein. This overview will serve to fix the chronology involved which is unclear from the file. Second is a review of the facts which came to light after the entry of the Decree of Divorce and which show that respondent at the time of the divorce had fraudulently misled the appellant and the court below as to his true assets in order to prevent appellant from receiving her fair and equitable share of the assets of the parties on dissolution of the marriage.

A. Procedural overview

On May 27, 1977, appellant filed her Complaint in the Third District Court, together with a Motion for Temporary Support. Respondent requested a formal hearing on the above-described Motion by way of a pleading entitled Notice, which was filed on June 24, 1977.

On July 28, 1977, appellant filed an Affidavit to the effect that she had no knowledge of the financial condition of respondent. By Order signed on July 28, 1977, a hearing requiring respondent to appear and show cause why he should not be required to make a full accounting of his assets and liabilities was set for September 6, 1977. Respondent filed his Answer to appellant's Complaint on August 1, 1977.

At the hearing on the Order to Show Cause, counsel for respondent requested a continuance "for the reason that defendant's business schedule would not allow him to appear on September 6, 1977." (R. 17) The hearing was continued to September 27, 1977 at which time appellant's Motion for Temporary Support was also to be heard.

On September 12, 1977, appellant filed her First Set of Interrogatories to Milan Mack Boyce.

At the September 27th hearing, respondent testified that he was renting his current residence from and was paid a salary by Insul-Guard Corporation, of which he was president. When asked by his attorney who owned the corporation, respondent answered:

A. Well, shareholders.

Q. Do you own an interest in that corporation?

A. I own a small interest in it, yes.

Q. What interest do you own?

A. I don't honestly know because I have so many commitments out to others.

As a result of this hearing, respondent was ordered to pay \$400 per month temporary support, to allow appellant the use of an automobile, and to maintain in force a policy of health insurance for the benefit of appellant and the minor children of the party.

On December 5, 1977, appellant filed a Motion for Order Compelling Discovery or in the Alternative, Motion for Entry of Default Judgment. Said Motion was noticed up for hearing on December 21, 1977. As a result of that hearing, respondent was ordered to answer the Interrogatories propounded by appellant on or before January 11, 1978, or failing that, respondent's Answer would be stricken and his default entered. On December 22, 1977, the case was set for trial on February 7, 1978, before Judge David Dee.

On January 16, 1978, respondent's Answer was stricken and his default entered.

On January 31, 1978, appellant filed a Notice of Default Hearing, which hearing was to be held on February 1, 1978, before Judge Marcellus K. Snow. On February 1, respondent filed a Motion to Vacate Default. As grounds for his Motion, respondent represented that he had been ill and that his illness had caused him to be late in responding to discovery. Respondent incorrectly represented that he had partially responded to discovery prior to the entry of default. The record reflects that respondent's Response to Written Interrogatories or to Demand for Admissions was filed on February 1, 1978. (R. 60) On February 1, Judge Snow granted respondent's Motion to Set Aside

Default, and further ordered "that no more continuances will be granted." (R. 59)

On February 8, 1978, Mr. Gayle Dean Hunt withdrew as counsel for respondent, and although no entry of appearance is found in the file, Jed W. Shields became counsel for respondent.

On February 15, 1978, the trial in this matter was set for March 17, 1978. On March 14, 1978, Mr. Shields requested a continuance of the trial date in spite of the Order of Judge Snow. Counsel gave as the reason for the requested continuance the fact that he had another trial set for March 17, and noticed up his motion for March 15, the day following the date of his motion. By Order filed March 15, 1978, Judge David B. Dee continued the trial of this case to April 7, 1978.

By Order of Judge Dee filed March 22, 1978, respondent was ordered to supply more complete answers to the Interrogatories of appellant, said answers to be submitted by March 24, 1978. The file contains no record of respondent ever having complied with said Order; however, at a hearing on October 17, 1978, appellant indicated that she received a single sheet of paper through her attorney a few days prior to the April 7 trial date, which sheet of paper purported to be answers as compelled by the March 22nd Order. (R. 803 and Plaintiff's Exhibit 1.)

By Minute Entry dated April 7, 1978, the divorce was granted and a settlement reached between appellant and respondent was read into the record. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and a Decree of Divorce were filed on May 19, 1978. On June 20,

1978, a Motion and Order were presented to Judge Dee which recited that the Findings and Decree entered on May 19, 1978 were erroneously entered. Therefore, new Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce were entered on June 22, 1978.

On July 20, 1978, appellant filed a Motion for Relief from Final Decree pursuant to Rule 60(b), U.R.C.P., alleging (1) that she had obtained material and relevant information regarding the real property of the parties which could not have been discovered by due diligence in time to move for a new trial, (2) that defendant, Milan Mack Boyce, had been guilty of fraud, misrepresentation, or misconduct in relation to the divorce action, and (3) that she had entered into the oral stipulation for settlement while under duress. This Motion was scheduled by appellant to be heard on October 2, 1978 but pursuant to a request for special setting filed by respondent an Order for Special Setting was signed by Judge Dee on July 27, 1978, and hearing on the Motion was set for July 31, 1978.

On August 1, 1978, the hearing on appellant's Motion was heard and based upon the affidavit of appellant filed August 1, 1978 (R. 182) the divorce decree was in effect set aside, and by Minute Entry of the same date, Judge Dee ordered "All real property and cash to be restored as they were on April 7, 1978." (R. 162) An Order reflecting the results of the August 1, 1978 hearing was drawn up by counsel for appellant but was never

On August 17, 1978, R.M. Child entered his appearance as counsel for appellant.

On approximately August 21, 1978, respondent filed his Petition to Set Aside the Temporary Order of the Court and to Restore the Decree of Divorce Herein, and an Objection to form of the proposed Order submitted by appellant, in which he protested that it would be impossible for respondent to comply with the Court's Order of August 1, 1978. Respondent's Petition and Objections came on for hearing before the Honorable Judge Dee on September 8, 1978. However, by reason of the fact that appellant had filed a Notice of Appeal contemporaneously with her Motion for Relief From Final Decree and Notice of Intent to Appeal, the file was not before the Court.

At that hearing Judge Dee questioned his authority exercised on August 1, 1978 in setting aside the Divorce Decree by reason of the prior filing of appellant's Notice of Appeal (R. 149) and suggested that if appellant dismissed the appeal to the Supreme Court, the trial court could again assume jurisdiction to hear appellant's Motion for Relief From Final Decree. (R. 774, 789)

Judge Dee further indicated that the Motion for Relief From Final Decree should be refiled as "a proper Rule 60(b) motion" (R. 788), and set the matter for hearing on October 17, 1978.

Appellant, respondent and the Court presumed that appellant could not conduct discovery unless and until the Divorce Decree had been set aside. From the transcript of the September 8, 1978 hearing the following pages contain material

which show that the indicated persons presumed discovery could not proceed: The Court - R. 782; appellant - R. 784, 785, 786; respondent - R. 781, 785, 786. From the transcript of the October 17, 1978 hearing the following pages show the same: the Court - R. 887; appellant - R. 886-87. (See Appendix 1 attached)

Appellant subsequently on September 12, 1978 voluntarily withdrew her appeal to the Supreme Court and on September 13, 1978 filed a Rule 60(b) Motion to Set Aside Decree (in whole or in part).

Commencing at 2:00 p.m. on October 17, 1978, hearing was held before Judge Dee on the various motions which had theretofore been filed by the parties.

At the beginning of the October 17th hearing, counsel for respondent represented to the Court that he had an affidavit of some length to counter the Affidavit in Support of Motion for Relief from Final Decree filed by appellant on August 1, 1978. Counsel for respondent also represented that he had case law standing for the proposition that the Court had no authority to set aside the Decree. (R. 795) The Court invited counsel to submit whatever affidavits or law he might have and then permitted the hearing to go forward.

At the hearing, appellant called four witnesses to testify and had three more prepared to testify. The purpose of this testimony was only to place before the Court evidence previously set forth in the affidavit of appellant upon which the Court relied in indicating its intent to set aside the decree on August 1, 1978. The evidence and Exhibits offered by appellant at this hearing are more specifically referred to in the second part

of this Statement of Facts. No evidence was offered by the respondent.

After approximately two hours of testimony the Court announced that it had another commitment. The Court stated: "And I've already got the feeling for whether or not this matter should be opened up based on the testimony so far." (R. 887-888)

The Court gave counsel for respondent one week to submit a memorandum on the issue of whether the court had authority to set aside the Divorce Decree in whole or in part. (R. 889) Appellant was given leave to file reply to respondent's memorandum. The Court indicated that after said memorandum had been filed the Court would hold further hearing for argument on whether the Court would "open it up." (R. 887)

On October 24, 1978, respondent filed his memorandum captioned "Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Motion to Set Aside Decree (in whole or in part) and Plaintiff's Motion for Relief From Final Decree." (R. 538) Reference was made therein to a counter-affidavit by respondent which was never in fact received by appellant until December 6, 1978. Said Motion was in fact a Memorandum of Law which sought to establish that the trial court was without authority to set aside the Decree. In response to this Motion, appellant submitted her Memorandum in Support of the Court's Authority to Set Aside Decree on or about October 31, 1978.

Following this, and because respondent had made no child support payments since the August 1st hearing, a Request for Early Ruling dated November 17, 1978 was filed with the Court followed by a Request for Ruling dated December 19, 1978.

On December 29, 1978, Judge Dee handed down his Memorandum Decision. After stating it was the Court's opinion that appellant had failed to establish a basis upon which her motion could be granted, the Court stated as follows:

The Court is of the opinion that all the information contained in the subsequent Affidavit and all of the allegations both pro and con contained in Affidavits filed by defendant and Counter-Affidavits by plaintiff were well known to the plaintiff and her competent counsel prior to the original Decree having been entered into on the 19th of May, 1978, and also prior to the entering into the Stipulation of the 7th of April, 1978. (R. 529)

After the Memorandum Decision was handed down but before any Order was signed by Judge Dee, appellant filed a Motion to Modify Divorce Decree and for Leave to Take Depositions. (R. 566-570) The Motion to Modify was based on the continuing jurisdiction vested in the divorce court by Section 30-3-5, U.C.A., 1953, as amended. Said Motion requested that Judge Dee consider appellant's prior motions as being motions to modify the decree of divorce entered June 22, 1978 and also requested that the Court delay ruling thereon and for leave of Court to take depositions "In order to determine the full facts and true holdings and earnings of the defendant for the guidance of the Court." (R. 567) This Motion was filed on January 25, 1979 and was in effect denied by Judge Dee.

An Amended Judgment and Order was signed by Judge Dee and filed January 31, 1979. Appellant filed her Notice of Appeal on February 27, 1979.

The preceding procedural over-view was given in an attempt to show the status of this matter before Judge Dee entered his Order denying the relief sought by appellant.

B. Facts learned after divorce as compared with respondent's representations at time of divorce

As was stated above, appellant sought relief from the lower court for fraud she alleges was perpetrated on her and the court below. Because of the inherent difficulty in showing fraud, appellant considers it essential to set forth the operative facts showing fraud in the detail as hereafter set forth.

In his Response to Written Interrogatories filed February 1, 1978, respondent delivered to appellant a Financial Statement dated April 30, 1977 and which was originally given to Zions First National Bank. Said Financial Statement shows respondent as having a net worth of \$814,637.39 with total assets of \$962,367.43. (R.78 and Defendant's Exhibit 7)

On the date of the divorce trial, April 17, 1978, respondent represented to the Court and to the appellant that he had total assets of \$300,000.00 and debts of \$100,000.00. This situation was confirmed to this Court on April 16, 1979 when in oral arguments on a motion in this matter, respondent's counsel on behalf of respondent made the following statement:

When the decree of divorce was entered, basically you were dealing with a total balance sheet of \$300,000 in assets and \$100,000 in liabilities. (Transcribed from tape recording of proceedings before the Supreme Court on April 16, 1979, Law and Motion Calendar)

Appellant relied on the representations of respondent in deciding whether to enter into the offered settlement. Had these representations been true, the settlement agreed on which awarded appellant \$98,000 as property distribution and \$2,000 lump-sum alimony for a total of \$100,000 cash, and which left respondent with the assets and liabilities of the parties, would indeed have been just and equitable. Judge Dee in explaining his unwillingness to award attorney's fees even characterized the settlement as "the handsome settlement you got." (R. 241) However, as the following discussion will point out, the settlement was far from "handsome" and in fact grossly inequitable and unjust.

According to the testimony of appellant at the October 17, 1978 hearing, respondent's representation on April 7, 1978 that his net worth was only \$200,000 was made and substantiated in the following fashion:

(1) On or about April 7, 1978 respondent supplied appellant with a document entitled "Contract and Agreement" and a document entitled "Addendum Number One." (Plaintiff's Exhibit 2 and 3, respectively) The Contract and Agreement indicated that on December 1, 1975 respondent sold his interest in all of his corporations to his parents, Milan C. and D. Noriene C. Boyce,

"for \$10.00 and other valuable consideration." Addendum Number One modifies some of the terms of the original Contract and Agreement but indicates that on February 1, 1977, respondent's parents were still the owners of the corporations. Likewise, in "answer" to an Order Compelling Answers, respondent supplied to appellant a single typed page indicating that he no longer owned any stock in any of the corporations he had organized. (Plaintiff's Exhibit 1)

Appellant testified on October 17th that the first time she saw Plaintiff's Exhibits 2 and 3 was within a few days before the April 7, 1978 hearing. She further testified that although she was listed as Secretary-Treasurer of the corporations for some years, she had no knowledge of the transfer of corporate ownership from respondent to his parents. (R. 834-387) The effect of these representations was to lead appellant to believe on April 7, 1978 that although the Financial Statement of April 30, 1977 indicated that respondent owned the corporations and had a net worth in excess of \$800,000, as a result of the transfer of corporate ownership he no longer owned those assets.

(2) Appellant and respondent jointly owned ten $\frac{1}{2}$ acre lots in the Dimple Dell Oaks Subdivision in Salt Lake County. Within a few days before the April 7, 1978 divorce hearing, respondent delivered to appellant a certified appraisal dated March 13, 1978. (Plaintiff's Exhibit 4) According to that appraisal each lot had an estimated value of \$4,650 for a total value of the property of \$46,500. (R. 809-810) Thus respondent

represented to and appellant acted upon the belief that said property had only a value of \$46,500.

(3) The personal residence of the parties was represented by respondent to have a market value of \$100,000 with encumbrances of \$83,463 (\$54,368 to Zions Bank and \$39,095 to American Concrete Construction, Inc.). (R. 66) This left an equity of \$16,537.

(4) Appellant and respondent jointly held property located at 1295 East 4800 South in Salt Lake City. In his answers to Interrogatories respondent represented the value of the property to be \$55,000 with encumbrances totalling \$63,055 (\$40,000 to Zions Bank and \$32,055 to Rhea B. Jacobs Groves Estate). (R. 66) Within a few days prior to the April 7, 1978 divorce hearing respondent delivered to appellant a certified appraisal report dated March 13, 1978 which gave as the value of the property \$65,000. (Plaintiff's Exhibit 5)

All of the foregoing information which was given to appellant by respondent seemed to support respondent's representation that on April 7, 1978 he had total assets of \$300,000 with liabilities of \$100,000 for a net worth of \$200,000.

However, as also shown by the testimony at the hearing of October 17, 1978, some time in May, 1978 respondent attempted to borrow approximately \$100,000 from the Lockhart Company and in connection with this loan application gave Lockhart a Financial Statement dated May 1, 1978. (Plaintiff's Exhibit 8) That Statement showed the following:

(1) Respondent included as his own the assets of the corporations he had purportedly sold to his parents. On cross-examination of Thomas Pike, Vice-President of The Lockhart Company, counsel for respondent asked if Mr. Boyce hadn't informed him that the Financial Statement included total Boyce family assets. Mr. Pike, who dealt with respondent, testified that he did not recall that any of the assets listed on the Statement were assets of others than the respondent. (R. 840-841) When Mr. Pike was asked what the Lockhart Company considered respondent's net worth to be, he answered, "I would say the figure on the financial statement of May 7." (R. 844)

(2) The May 1 Financial Statement shows a fair market value of \$250,000 for the ten $\frac{1}{2}$ acre lots in Dimple Dell Oaks. Mr. Pike of the Lockhart Company testified on October 17 that his company had the lots appraised and made a loan based on the value of the property being \$260,000. (R. 846-847) Thus on May 1, 1978 respondent represented to Lockhart and Lockhart found the value of these lots to be in excess of five times what respondent had represented their value to be on April 7, 1978, three weeks earlier. The Financial Statement of May 1 also reflects that the liens in favor of American Concrete Construction, Inc. were no longer on the property.

In this regard it should be noted that respondent was President of American Concrete Construction, Inc. Release of all liens in the name of that corporation immediately following the divorce of the parties must indicate to an impartial observer

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