1979

Nina Doreen Davis Boyce v. Milan Mack Boyce : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

ARGUMENT

I.

NO FRAUD WAS PERPETRATED ON THE APPELLANT BY THE RESPONDENT AND APPELLANT WAS AFFORDED A FULL OPPORTUNITY TO PROVE SUCH AVERMENTS AND FAILED TO DO SO.

The parties in this matter entered into a stipulated divorce. Appellant now seeks to set aside her agreement and the Decree entered pursuant to that agreement insisting that the Respondent perpetrated fraud upon her by hiding and otherwise misrepresenting his assets, thus depriving her of the ability to present the full extent of such assets to the Court and causing her to enter into an unfair Property Settlement. The trial court correctly determined that no fraud had been perpetrated and that the Appellant had a full and complete opportunity to present her evidence in support of her Rule 60(b) Motion and failed to prove her averments. When the trial court, after hearing determines that an Appellant failed to establish grounds justifying setting aside a judgment, this court has ruled it should not disturb that ruling absent of a clear abuse of discretion on the part of the trial judge. Warren v. Dixon Ranch Co., 123 U. 416, 260 P.2d 741

(1953). In setting out this rule, this Court declared that the key consideration is that the parties should be given an opportunity to present their position to the Court. 123 Utah at 419-420. As this Court stated in Warren:

"The Rule that the Courts will incline toward granting relief to a party who has not had the opportunity to present his case is ordinarily applied at the trial court level, and this Court will not reverse the trial court where it appears that all elements were considered, merely because the Motion could have been granted. The Supreme Court will not substitute its discretion for that of the trial court." Id., at 744.

In this case Appellant had her day in Court (two of them, first on April 7, 1978 at the time of the stipulated settlement and again a second time on October 17, 1978) and now attempts to retry the facts, not the law here. That is something this court can do but does not do on the facts because of the great deference given to the trial court's advantage in being in close proximity to the parties and the witnesses during the trial. Richins v. Struhs, 17 U. 2d 356, 358, 412 P.2d 314 (1966).

This Court has considered precisely the issues presented in this matter in Haner v. Haner, 13 U. 2d 299, 373 P.2d 577 (1962) where an appeal was taken from an order denying a Motion to Set Aside or Modify Divorce Decree. The Motion was based on allegation that Respondent had introduced evidence of fraudulent values on some of the properties which were subject to

property settlement. In affirming the trial court, this Court ruled:

"In order to justify granting relief, the alleged wrong would have to be of the type characterized as extrinsic fraud: that is, fraud based on conduct or activities outside the court proceedings themselves; and which is designed and has the effect of depriving the other party of the opportunity to present his claim or defense." 13 Utah 2d at 301.

This is not the type of fraud being pleaded in the instant case by the Appellant. Appellant's position is that the Respondent deliberately understated and denied ownership of certain properties in his answers to interrogatories and affidavits (see Appellant's Brief, "Statement of Facts"), all of which could have been or were presented to the Court at the time of the April 7, 1978 stipulation and could have been challenged by the Appellant in the Court proceedings. In fact, they were subject to just such scrutiny in the hearing held October 17, 1978. This Court stated in Haner in regard to this type of appeal:

"It is obvious that quite a different situation exists where there is no prevention of the party from contesting the issues in a trial, and where the complaint is simply that one party presented perjured testimony or false evidence. This charge is simply a continuation of the same dispute which the trial was supposed to resolve. It is the purpose of the law to afford parties full opportunity to have themselves and their

witnesses present; and to present their evidence and their contentions to the Court. When this has been done and the Court has made its determination, that should end the matter, except for the right of appeal. It is so patent as to hardly justify comment that a judgment should not be set aside merely to grant the losing party another chance to accomplish the task at which he just failed; to prove that he was right and that the opponent was wrong. To reopen a case just because a party persists in asserting and attempting to prove that his version of the dispute was the truth and that of the opponent was false would open the door to a repetition of that procedure, whoever won the next time; and thus to keeping the dispute going ad infinitum with no way of determining when the merry-go-round of the law suit would end. This would involve not only a waste of time, energy, and expense but also would result in such uncertainty as to people's rights that the very purpose of a law suit, the settling of disputes and putting them at rest, would be defeated. Resort to the Courts would be frustrating and impracticable unless there were some point at which decisions became final so that parties could place reliance thereon, leave their troubles behind and proceed to the future. It is for these reasons that Courts accord to judgments regularly entered a high degree of sanctity; and would overturn a judgment such as the instant one on the ground of fraud only if it were shown that the complaining party had been wrongfully deprived of the opportunity to meet and contest the issues at trial." 13 Utah 2d at 301-302.

The Appellant had her day in Court, in which she had a full opportunity to present evidence to support her accusations of fraud. She simply failed to prove those accusations. She asserts that the trial court made its decision based on affidavits

rather than testimony but that is not true. From the record it is obvious Judge Dee did not rely on the Respondent's Affidavit in reaching his decision because at the end of the October 17, 1978, fraud hearing he indicated that he already had a feeling for whether or not the Appellant had met her burden of proof in the matter, based on the testimony presented at the hearing (R. 887-888). She had the opportunity to present evidence on October 17, 1978 and simply failed to prove her case. She now seeks to try it one more time before this Court.

It is interesting to note that the Appellant in her brief admits that she failed to meet her burden of proof:

"The October 17 Hearing was not intended to, and it did not, amount to formal proof of common law fraud." (emphasis added) (page 30).

Respondent is in full agreement with the Appellant that the hearing did not result in proof of fraud, but the Appellant is gravely mistaken if she is under the impression that the October 17, 1978 hearing was not intended as evidentiary in character, fully intended to allow her a full opportunity to prove the averments of her Motion. Judge Dee, during the hearing which preceded the October 17, 1978 hearing, characterized that hearing as a full evidentiary hearing (R. 779) and put Appellant on notice that the October 17, 1978 hearing was indeed the occasion to present proof of her allegations of fraud (R. 779 *et seq.*).

Appellant also takes the position that Judge Dee "gave the impression" at the September 8, 1978 hearing that Appellant could not proceed with any discovery prior to the October 17, 1978 hearing. Appellant attempts to persuade this Court that such was the case by including selected portions of the record of the September 8, 1978 hearing in the appendix to her brief, evidently to excuse her failure to prove her allegations of fraud. If Appellant would have read the remainder of the record of the September 8, 1978 hearing, she would have discovered that Judge Dee took quite the opposite position:

"THE COURT: . . . but if there is an indication that at the time the Decree was entered the person who entered into a Stipulation on the basis of which the Decree was issued was acting under a mistake of fact or surprise or with some kind of excusable neglect or there was some misrepresentation or fraud, the Court will exercise jurisdiction as a Court of equity, to look into those problems. And the only way I am going to get information which will be a basis on which I can decide whether or not the Court has made a mistake in entering that Decree is to allow the defendant and the plaintiff broad opportunities to take what other steps they need to take to implement their discovery: Depositions, demand for production of documents, whatever you need to take, whatever steps you need to take in order that the Court can properly have all of the facts.

* * * * *

And now I'm opening it up for the purpose of giving you gentlemen the opportunity to advise me as to what property is involved

and how it should be divided, and that's got to be the way to go. (emphasis added).
R.787-788.

The above-quoted statement of the Court shows not only did the Court not "give the impression" that discovery was blocked, Judge Dee directly stated the opposite. How Appellant arrived at the "impression" that discovery was blocked by the Court is a virtual mystery to the Respondent.

A reading of the record will also reveal that all of the issues which the Appellant raises in relation to her allegations of fraud were "tried or triable" in the lower court proceedings in the fashion contemplated under the authority of Haner v. Haner, supra. For the purposes of clarity of explanation, each property allegedly put out of Appellant's reach by the alleged fraud will be listed and responded to respectively:

1. The Transfer of the Corporations to Mr. and Mrs. Milan C. Boyce, Respondent's Parents: Appellant alleges that the Respondent transferred certain corporations which he allegedly "owned" to his parents without her knowledge, causing her to enter into a stipulation awarding her less than that to which she was entitled.

Mrs. Boyce, the Appellant, was in fact fully apprised of the ownership or lack thereof in said corporations (R. 821-825). She was aware of the financial statement submitted by the

Respondent to Zions First National Bank and Respondent's Answers to Interrogatories, which were submitted to Appellant prior to the April 7, 1978 Stipulation (R. 60-89). In paragraph twelve (12) of her Affidavit of January 22, 1979, entitled "Affidavit of Nina Doreen Davis Boyce In Response to Defendant's Answer and Counter Affidavit", Appellant states that she knew of the transfer of the corporations prior to the April 7, 1978 hearing wherein the stipulation was entered (R. 571-584).

Appellant was afforded and took a full opportunity to try, contest, and offer proof regarding the alleged fraud involved in the corporate transfers (R. 829 *et seq.*). Since no fraud occurred, she was unable to prove any.

"Fraud" is defined by Black's Law Dictionary, Fourth Edition, as "concealment of that which should have been disclosed which deceives and is intended to deceive another so that he should act upon it to his legal injury." In light of the fact that Appellant admitted under oath that she was fully apprised of the transfers, no claim of fraud can be based on these acts.

2. Respondent's Statement of Value Regarding the Dimple Dell Oaks Subdivision Property: Appellant alleges that the Respondent defrauded her by presenting a certified MAI appraisal stating the value of the Dimple Dell Oaks property as Forty Six Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$46,500) when in fact it

was worth in excess of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$150,000) (R. 255 See also R. 66).

To say that the Respondent attempted to defraud the Appellant in the fashion alleged shows an absolute and total disregard of the record. In the September 27, 1977 hearing, Respondent himself stated under oath that the property was worth, in his opinion, in excess of One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$150,000) (R. 255 and R. 66). Further, in a financial statement given to Appellant in response to interrogatories, Respondent valued the Dimple Dell property at \$175,000.00 (R. 79).

The Forty Six Thousand Five Hundred (\$46,500) Dollar figure was a net value figure that was calculated by a certified appraiser. See Plaintiff's Exhibit 4. Apparently, Appellant is not able to distinguish between market value and net value/equity after required improvements, a critical distinction when the net asset value of real property is in question. Respondent's statements of the market value of the property were entered into the record prior to the April 7, 1978 Stipulation and thus served to inform Appellant of Respondent's perception of the value of the property. Appellant was afforded and took a full opportunity to try, contest, and offer proof of this allegation, her evidence failed and the Trial Court correctly rejected her claim (R. 255 *et seq.* R. 841 *et seq.*)

3. Parties Residence at Top of the World Drive.

Prior to the April 7, 1978 stipulation, the parties sold this property in a bona fide sale to an unrelated third party for One Hundred Thousand (\$100,000.00) Dollars (R. 443), which fairly and accurately established the fair market value of this property. This sale established that Appellant's claims regarding any other representation of value is without merit. If other evidence existed it has not been presented by Appellant.

4. Liens in Favor of American Concrete Construction, Inc. Appellant knew of said liens prior to the April 7, 1978 stipulation (R. 66). Said liens did not evaporate as claimed by the Appellant. The liens for labor and materials were (after the stipulation of April 7, 1978) traded for land the Respondent was awarded in the settlement. The Appellant was informed of this prior to the October 17, 1978 hearing (R. 328-329). Since there was no fraud involved, Appellant failed to prove it occurred.

5. The Higher Valuation Placed on the 1295 East 4800 South Property. Appellant alleges as fraud the fact that the Respondent's family gave a higher value for this property in the Lockhart financial statement of May 1, 1978 than Respondent had previously given prior to the stipulation. This is true but the higher valuation was given because of a zoning change and sale of a neighbors property after the zoning change caused a rise in the value of that similar property. Even the application

(R. 439) for the said zoning change was not filed by the neighboring owner until after the April 7th 1978 stipulation. The zoning change and its subsequent windfall to the Respondent's family was completely beyond the Respondent's control and certainly nothing the Respondent knew of or withheld from the Appellant who was as able as was the Respondent or his family to learn of these events (R. 435-440 See also R. 316-318).

6. Sale of the Red, Inc. Partnership Interest in the Highland Drive Property to May V. Boen: In answer to Appellant's Interrogatories, Respondent described the complete status of this property to the Appellant prior to the April 7, 1978 stipulation (R. 212 See also R. 67). Appellant later tried to contend that Respondent fraudulently transferred the interest in this property allegedly purchased by the Respondent (in his capacity as President of Insul-Guard Corporation) and a Dr. Tarbet. May V. Boen testified that this was a bona fide purchase and sale between herself and the Insul-Guard Corporation (R. 883-884). She made the purchase with her own money (contrary to Appellant's assertions).

Appellant did not prove any attempts by the Respondent to conceal the sale from the Appellant (R. 861 *et seq.*). In fact Dr. Tarbet testified that the transactions were discussed with the Appellant (R. 851).

Thus Appellant was afforded and took a full opportunity to contest, try and offer proof of the allegation of fraud in this respect and her evidence did not support her assertion.

7. The Lockhart Company Financial Statement of May 1, 1978: Appellant alleges that the Respondent represented at the lower court proceedings that he had no interest in the corporations heretofore described (due to the transfer of the same to his parents). But asserted that after those proceedings, he applied for a loan at The Lockhart Company telling them in his consolidated family financial statement that he owned the corporations. Appellant asserts this as evidence of fraudulent concealment.

Appellant was afforded and took a full opportunity to try, contest, and offer proof of this allegation. Respondent contended and does now contend that the assets listed on the Lockhart financial statement were family assets, not personal assets. This was discussed with and understood by the Lockhart Company's loan officer, Thomas G. Pike. Mr. Pike testified that there had been a discussion of family assets being pledged as security for the loan (R. 841). The heading on one of the pages of the financial statement plainly states that the assets thereon belong to the Respondent's Aunt, May V. Boen (R. 208 and plaintiff's Exhibit 8) and there is in the statement a summary page

showing the summary of family assets being consolidated into the statement (R. 204 and plaintiff's Exhibit 8).

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